
 

General Business                                       Lower Saucon Township                                   December 2, 2015 

& Developer                                                     Council Agenda                                                        7:00 p.m. 
 

  

I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS  
 

III DEVELOPER ITEMS 

A. Cottages Subdivision – Mountain View Dr. – Request to Terminate Planned Community (HOA) 

 
IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. IESI Southeastern Expansion Special Exception – Review of Landfill Technical Consultants Comments 

B. Quarterly Township Landfill Consultants Report 

C. Council Direction on Citizens Committee Report Recommendations 
 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. Approval of November 18, 2015 Council Minutes 

     

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   
 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council/ Jr. Council Member 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 E. Planner  
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Next Park & Rec Meeting:  December 7, 2015 

Next EAC Meeting:  December 8, 2015 

Next Council Meeting:  December 16, 2015 
Next Planning Commission Meeting:  December 17, 2015 

Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  December 21, 2015 

Next Saucon Valley Partnership:  January 13, 2016 @ HB 
Next Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission Meeting:  January 25, 2016 @ LST 

 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



DRAFT 

General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                     December 2, 2015 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                          7:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

I. OPENING 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 

was called to order on Wednesday, December 2, 2015 at 7:05 p.m., at Lower Saucon Township, 3700 Old 

Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA with Mr. Ron Horiszny, presiding.     

ROLL CALL:  Ron Horiszny, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Dave Willard and Priscilla 

deLeon, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant Manager; Linc 

Treadwell, Township Solicitor; Judy Stern Goldstein, Township Planner; Kevin Chimics, Township 

Engineer.  Jr. Council Member:  Rachel Panek.  Absent:  Glenn Kern, Council Member 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

Mr. Horiszny said Council met in Executive Session prior to this meeting to discuss possible litigation and 

personnel issues.  Attorney Treadwell said the first issue was to discuss an issue about which an identifiable 

complaint is expected to be filed and that had to do with the affirmative covenant from 2005 that was 

attached as a condition of approval to the relocation of the maintenance building.  

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved that Council agrees with the interpretation of the affirmative covenant as 

described by the Solicitor during the Executive Session.   

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

Attorney Treadwell said the second item was a discussion of the Louder litigation with LST. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to authorize the President of Council to execute the confidential 

settlement agreement and general release. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mrs. deLeon said we were sued in the past by the Morning Call because we didn’t release a settlement 

document.  Is this subject to the Right to Know?  Attorney Treadwell said the terms of the settlement 

agreement are confidential, but it is subject to disclosure under the Right to Know Act. 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (Mr. Maxfield – No; Mr. Kern – Absent) 

Attorney Treadwell said the other item was a personnel matter. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. Horiszny said if you are on the agenda, you have Council and Staff’s undivided attention.  If you do 

choose to speak, we ask that you use one of the microphones.  He asks that you give your fellow public the 

courtesy of the floor.  We ask that you state your name for the record so the transcriptionist knows who is 

speaking in the minutes.  If you are up at the table, please speak into the microphone.   

 

II. PRESENTATIONS AND HEARINGS – None 

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

A. COTTAGES SUBDIVISION – MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVE – REQUEST TO TERMINATE 

PLANNED COMMUNITY (HOA) 

Attorney Treadwell said this project was approved back in 2005 and one of the conditions imposed 

required the applicant to create an HOA to manage storm water facilities.  The current owner is 

asking that the HOA be dissolved, but the Township needs to approve that.  The storm water 

maintenance facilities would then become the responsibility of each individual lot owner.     

 

Mrs. deLeon asked who drew up the ratification agreement?  Attorney Treadwell said it was 

Tuskes’ attorney, and he doesn’t have a problem with it as it’s an agreement between private 

parties and we’re not involved.  He said we are not going to take any action tonight until he finds 

out about the 80%.  This agenda item was tabled. 

 

Mr. Maxfield asked if someone is going to be keeping an eye on this.  Attorney Treadwell said they 

will get more detail when they bring it back.   



DRAFT 

General Business & Developer Meeting    

December 2, 2015 
 

Page 2 of 5 

Mr. Tom Carocci, Pheasant Court, said if there’s a problem on one of those properties.  If you 

allow them to get rid of the HOA, the only person responsible for that problem will be the 

individual homeowner, and that is something to consider.  Attorney Treadwell said he will look 

into all of this and get more detail. 

 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. IESI SOUTHEASTERN EXPANSION SPECIAL EXCEPTION – REVIEW OF LANDFILL 

TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS COMMENTS 

Mr. Jim Birdsall, Hanover Engineering was present.  He said the landfill filed a special exception 

application and are going to the ZHB.  He explained the process that the special exception has to go 

through.     

 

Mr. Birdsall said his letter refers to technical issues that the ZHB may not be aware of.  Many of 

the comments were already issued to DEP in the planning stages.  If you want to authorize the 

Technical Committee to make the same presentation to the ZHB, that’s what they ask permission to 

do.  The ZHB has to determine what is pre-empted by state law or things that the P/C and SALDO 

may take care of and focus on those issues.   

 

Mr. Birdsall reviewed his letter dated November 24
th
.  DEP has already sent a review letter as a 

result of our August letter.  They are looking at the same issues and IESI will be responding.  He 

referenced his summary on odors, noise, and traffic. 

 

Maryanne Garber, legal counsel for IESI, stated based on review letters, they made revisions  and 

submitted a plan on November 24
th
 and are supplementing their ZHB application with updated 

revised land development plan which was revised October 15
th
.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said on Form D, there are a lot of deficiencies.  Ms. Garber said the comments on 

Form D are the same comments made to the DEP application.  Mrs. deLeon said the ZHB is 

December 21
st
 and what determines if this is the letter used.  Attorney Treadwell said he thinks the 

intent of presenting this to you was to give you an explanation. The plan would be to have this on 

the December 16
th
 meeting  for Council to decide what position they would like to take in front of 

the ZHB.  He recommends you authorize Attorney Elliot to represent the Township in that matter.   

 

Mr. Willard asked Attorney Treadwell what the expected output was of the ZHB?  Attorney 

Treadwell said the ZHB will have the special exception application in front of them and at the end 

of the hearing they will approve it, approve it with conditions, or deny it.  Based on past 

experience, it will take more than one night for the ZHB to come up with a decision. 

 

Mrs. deLeon asked Ms. Garber to provide the number of acres they are going to piggyback over.    

 

Mr. Maxfield said talking about the leachate leaking from the Phase III area, he’s not sure what 

qualifies as a known environmental harm.  Currently his understanding is this leachate is being 

caught by the secondary system and being treated, so it’s not causing any harm right now so he 

would say an identified potential harm makes more sense.  We need to be clear about that as the 

subject keeps coming up.  Mr. Birdsall said okay. 

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved to request that Attorney Elliott be involved in the ZHB process. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

General Business & Developer Meeting    

December 2, 2015 
 

Page 3 of 5 

B. QUARTERLY TOWNSHIP LANDFILL CONSULTANT’S REPORT 

Mr. Jim Birdsall provided their quarterly report dated November 23
rd

 with Council.  The average 

daily volume is 863 versus the permit limit of 1,375, so the tons have gone down.  The surface 

emission monitoring has improved.      

 

Mr. Birdsall said regarding the mobile analytical unit reports from DEP, they thought the hydrogen 

sulfide was high, but was a misreading on their part and is not a concern.  Mrs. deLeon asked him 

to send up a follow-up letter with the correction.  Mr. Horiszny asked him to resubmit it. 

 

Mr. Birdsall said the committee is still concerned about the operation management and there should 

be more management available on a regular basis.   

 

Mr. Horiszny asked the status of BRE.  Mrs. deLeon asked if there is anything the Township can 

do?  Attorney Treadwell said we really don’t control the operation of any business.   

 

Mr. Walter Zagwoski, Ivywood Avenue, said they are producing enough gas to supply 3,000 

houses everyday with energy yet this has been shut down since September, so that is not accurate.  

Mr. Horiszny said IESI is still producing the gas.  BRE is not producing the power.   

 

C. COUNCIL DIRECTION ON CITIZENS COMMITTEE REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

Mr. Willard reviewed the recommendations with Council which included forming a Planning/ 

Zoning Review Committee on a trial basis for 2016, developing marketing materials like a 

brochure, website or videos, evaluate the designation of a single consultant, planner or engineer to 

review the minor subdivision and land developments.  He suggested the Zoning Officer do the 

evaluation and recommendations.  He recommended Mark Ironside, Mike Lieberman, and Sandra 

Miller be on the committee in 2016. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said a few items could be done right away, but he was surprised that so many things 

were skipping over the P/C for review.  He liked the idea of a staff member, possibly Roger Rasich, 

go out with the engineer on dedication inspections.  He’s interested in the zoning map changes and 

the first steps should be sent to the P/C for review.  He said has some concerns with the Review 

Committee and that it would become an advocate position.  He’s not sure about the committee as it 

sets up for conflicts.  He’d like more explanation on it.  Mrs. deLeon said we can discuss this in 

more detail next year when the new Council is in place.  Mr. Horiszny said he agrees with Mr. 

Maxfield’s comments.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved that we refer the suggested zoning map changes to the P/C for review; we 

have a program where a staff member of Public Works and an engineer go out on the 

dedication inspection; we begin to assemble a marketing materials and associated activities; the 

SALDO and zoning pre-reviews; and the single engineer for small jobs. 

 Mrs. deLeon said she needs more information on the map changes before we send them to the P/C 

and she’d like to see maps first.  Mr. Maxfield said that’s the P/C’s job.  Ms. Stern Goldstein said 

they have exhibits prepared for consideration that would be worked on.     

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No; Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

 A. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 18, 2015 COUNCIL MINUTES 

Mr. Horiszny said the November 18, 2015 Council minutes are ready for Council approval.  

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the November 18, 2015 Council minutes. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No; Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 



DRAFT 

General Business & Developer Meeting    

December 2, 2015 
 

Page 4 of 5 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 Ms. Donna Louder said Jack did a lot of work trying to keep the tractor trailers out of Steel City, 

but the past month they had five of them in there loaded with I-beams.  She’d like to have us 

approach Bethlehem to change their street name.  Mr. Cahalan said they did go to PennDOT twice 

and they refused.  They made a request to Google maps also and nothing has happened as the pin is 

at the wrong place.  There is a Riverside Drive in Salisbury Township also.  Mr. Horiszny said 

should we try a letter to Salisbury and ask them?   Mr. Horiszny said write a letter and see if they 

can contact Google.   Mr. Cahalan said he will look into it and come back with information to 

Council. 

 Mr. Gene Boyer asked what the other subject that was discussed in the Executive Session.  

Attorney Treadwell said it had to do with a condition that was placed on an IESI approval back in 

2005 and we had an Executive Session because it was an item that a specific complaint was 

identified and could be filed about.  We discussed it and Council voted to authorize him to inform 

the landfill of the interpretation he made in that session.   

 Mark Wirth, Black River Road, asked about an article in the paper that money was allotted to LST 

and he still hasn’t seen anything done with that regarding Black River Road.  Mr. Cahalan said it’s 

not on Mr. Wirth’s side of I78, it’s on the other side.  Mr. Cahalan said it’s Fire Lane down to 

Black River.  Mr. Wirth was talking about down by Sanbrook, there’s some erosion.  Mr. Horiszny 

asked Mr. Wirth to send pictures from 30 years ago to Saucon Creek Watershed and Wildlands. 

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS  

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 

 Mr. Cahalan said there was an incident where a bicycle and a car collided at the intersection 

of Meadows Road and the Rail Trail.  The SRTOC made a recommendation that we add 

additional fence sections to that crossing with the goal of slowing down bike riders.  At 

Upper Saucon and Hellertown, there is an additional fence section that forces the bike rider 

to slow down.     

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval to install the bicycle fence sections at a cost of $300.00. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

 Mr. Cahalan said there was a fire at Brights Land but there was no sign on the street.  It’s 

identified as Brights Lane by the County and PW will be installing a street sign there.   

 He said a letter from the State Department of Education about the Hellertown Area Library 

state funding, indicated the amount of funding is less than he thought.  The HAL Board has 

to take action send a resolution.  

 Mr. Cahalan said we were turned down for the school bus stop ahead sign on Friendensville 

Road.  The PW Director will be meeting out at the site with a PennDOT rep and Wally 

Zimpfer, SVSD, to address that problem. 

 Mr. Cahalan said Mr. Petrie spoke about the Lower Saucon Road speed limit at the previous 

meeting.  This was reviewed by the Police Dept. and they feel it should be lowered.  There 

had been a speed reduction approval in 2010 to 30 MPH from Applebutter Road north 

towards Williams Township.  The Township Engineer is going to have a discussion with 

PennDOT to get the reduction zone extended up to Redington Road.   

 Mr. Cahalan said year-end reports for the adopt-a-road program and the SV Compost Center 

are posted on the website. 

B. COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL 

Rachel Panek 
 Ms. Panek said a freshman classmate’s house just burned down and the school is trying to 

raise money to go to the family.   

Mr. Maxfield – No report 

 

 



DRAFT 

General Business & Developer Meeting    

December 2, 2015 
 

Page 5 of 5 

Mrs. deLeon  
 Friday, December 4

th
 is Hellertown Historical Society Holiday party; Saturday, December 

5
th
 is the LST Historical Society Christmas party; and Monday, December 7

th
 is the SV 

Conservancy Christmas party at the Heller Homestead. 

Mr. Kern – Absent 

Mr. Willard 
 Welcomed Rachel Panek to the Council meeting. 

Mr. Horiszny – No report 

C. SOLICITOR – No report 

D. PLANNER – No report 

E. ENGINEER – No report 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:52 p.m. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Willard 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Kern – Absent) 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Jack Cahalan       Ron Horiszny (NOT APPROVED)   

Township Manager      Council President 

 


